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(and commission of underlying predicate acts) and, but for WellPoint’s RICO
violations (and commission of underlying predicate acts), they would not have
suffered these injuries.

184. Pursuant to Section 1964(c) of RICO, 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c), Plaintifts and
the Class are entitled to recover threefold their damages, costs and attorneys’ fees

from WellPoint and other appropriate relief.

COUNTV
FOR VIOLATIONS OF RICO, 18 U.S.C. S§ 1962(C
FOR PREDICATE ACTS UNDER 18 U.S.C

.§ 66
AS WELL AS MAIL AND WIRE FRAUB
(ON BEHALF OF ALL PLAINTIFFS AND THE ERISA SUBCLASS)

185. Plaintiffs hereby repeat the allegations of the prior paragraphs of the
Complaint as if fully set forth herein, including, but not limited to, the allegations of’
Count IV descnbing the Enterprise. This claim is asserted by Plaintiffs on behalf sz
themselves and on behalf the members of the ERISA Subclass described above.

186. The Individual Plaintiffs and the ERISA Subclass have standing to
pursue these claims as assignees of their patients’ out-of-network benefits and as third
party beneficiaries of their patients’ out-of-network benefits.

187. The Associational Plaintiffs have standing to pursue these claims both
individually and/or on behalf of their members through associational standing.

188. Section 1961(1)(B) of RICO specifically identifies as a predicate act
“any act which is indictable under ... [§] 664 (relating to embezzlement from pension
and welfare funds)” as a predicate act. 18 U.S.C. § 1961(1)(B). Section 664 of Title
18 provides:

Theft or embezzlement from employee benefit plan
Any person who embezzles, steals, or unlawfully and
willfully abstracts or converts to his own use or to the use of
another, any of the moneys, funds, securities, premiums,
credits, property, or other assets of any employee welfare
benefit plan or employee pension benefit plan, or of any
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fund connected therewith, shall be fined under this title, or
imprisoned not more than five years, or both.

189. Each of the WellPoint healthcare plans which is an “employee welfare
benefit plan” within the meaning of ERISA, 29 U.S.C. § 1002(1)(A), and otherwise is
subject to “any provision” of Title I of ERISA is included in this Count.

190. Each of the WellPoint healthcare plans that are subject to ERISA or are a
non-ERISA plan funded by insurance coverage WellPoint provides or administers, is
subject to Section 664 of Title 18. The applicable plan documents expressly state that
all benefits due under the plan terms will be paid and that the underlying benetfits they
expressly guarantee are plan assets.

191. The governing plan documents warrant that all benefits due under the
plans will be paid. By improperly reducing payments on out-of-network claims,
WellPoint intentionally caused Plaintiffs and the members of the ERISA Subclass to
be underpaid guaranteed benefits to which they were otherwise entitled in accordance
with the terms of their group health plans.

192. For fully insured health care plans, in which WellPoint both
administered the plans and paid the benefits from its own assets, WellPoint benefited
from the conversion of assets from its ERISA plans. Whereas these assets should
have been held by WellPoint in its fiduciary capacity under ERISA and non-ERISA
plans and paid to its members, WellPoint improperly withheld such funds and
maintained them as part of its own assets for WellPoint’s own benefit. For self-
funded health care plans, WellPoint made final appeal decisions and intentionally
caused underpayment of benefits to Plaintiffs and the ERISA Subclass in order to
justify its receipt of administrative fees.

193. WellPoint acted with specific intent to deprive Plaintiffs and ERISA
Subclass members of guaranteed benefits, and was sufficiently aware of the facts to

know that it was acting unlawfully and contrary to the trust placed in them by
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Plaintiffs, ERISA Subclass members and the insurers whose plans it was
administering.

194. FEach false payment on a claim constitutes a separate and distinct
predicate act, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 664, of converting or misappropriating funds
specifically earmarked within the applicable plan as a guaranteed benefit for the
intended member, for WellPoint’s direct or indirect benefit.

195. As set forth above, WellPoint concocted multiple and multi-faceted
schemes, including use of the Ingenix database, to make improperly reduced
payments for out-of-network services.

196. In furtherance of its false payment schemes, WellPoint, in violation of

18 U.S.C. §§ 1341 and 1343, repeatedly and regularly used the U.S. mail and

i

interstate wire facilities to advance all aspects of the false payment schemes by |
delivering and/or receiving materials, including plan documents, insurance policies, |
summary plan descriptions, certificates of coverage, claim forms, reimbursement
checks, EOBs describing UCR determinations, appeal determinations, overpayment
actions, pre authorization decisions, referrals to collection agencies, representations to
regulators, and other materials necessary to effectuate the false payment schemes, as
well as to contribute, edit and manipulate the source data for the Ingenix databases.
197. The foregoing mail communications and wire communications contained
false and fraudulent misrepresentations and omissions of material facts, and
otherwise were incident to an essential part of the false payment schemes and were
used to provide the false payment schemes with an appearance of legitimacy and
regularity, and postpone ultimate discovery and complaints of the false payment
schemes, and thereby make the discovery of the false payment schemes less likely
than if no such mailings or wire transmissions had taken place, and had the design

and effect of preventing a meaningful evaluation and review of WellPoint’s Nonpar

pricing methods.
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198. As named fiduciaries and claims administrators of various of the
WellPoint healthcare plans, WellPoint occupied and occupies a position of trust and it
had, and has, a special relationship with Plaintiffs and ERISA Subclass members that
requires it to accurately represent the terms and conditions of the WellPoint
healthcare plans, and to disclose all facts the omission of which would be reasonably
calculated to deceive persons of ordinary prudence and comprehension.

199. Each such use of the U.S. mail and interstate wire facilities constitutes a
separate and distinct predicate act of “racketeering activity.”

200. The above-described acts of conversion of employee benefit plan funds,

and mail and wire fraud, are related because they each involved common participants,

common methodologies, common results impacting upon common victims and a

common purpose of executing the false payment schemes, and are continuous |

because they occurred over a significant period of years, and constitute the usual
practice of WellPoint such that they amount to and pose a threat of continued
racketeering activity.

201. The purpose of WellPoint’s false payment scheme was to underpay the
guaranteed benefits to which were assigned to Plaintiffs and ERISA Subclass
members, and convert those withheld funds for its own direct or indirect financial
gain. WellPoint created an appearance of regularity and legitimacy by providing false
and incomplete information to Plaintiffs and ERISA Subclass members, in order to
increase revenue through its plan and claims administration business.

202. The direct and intended victims of the pattern of racketeering activity
described previously herein are Plaintiffs and ERISA Subclass members, who
WellPoint deprived of the complete guaranteed benefits to which they are entitled for
out-of-network services.

203. WellPoint’s RICO violations injured Plaintiffs and ERISA Subclass
members by depriving them of hundreds of millions of dollars in guaranteed benefits

on their claims for reimbursement of out-of-network charges, as well as the
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knowledge necessary to challenge false and manipulative UCR determinations, and
their injuries were proximately caused by the violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(¢c)
because these injuries were the foreseeable, direct, intended and natural consequence
of WellPoint’s RICO violations (and commission of underlying predicate acts), and
but for WellPoint’s RICO violations (and commission of underlying predicate acts),
Plaintiffs and ERISA Subclass members would not have suffered the injuries suffered
by them.

204. As a result of its misconduct, WellPoint is liable to Plaintiffs and the
ERISA Subclass in an amount to be determined at trial. Pursuant to Section 1964(c)
of RICO, 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c), Plaintiffs and ERISA Subclass members are entitled to
recover threefold their damages, and costs and attorneys’ fees from WellPoint.

COUNT VI

FOR VIOLATIONS OF RICO, 18 U.S.C. § 1962(D)
(ON BEHALF OF ALL PLAINTIFFS AND THE CLASS)

205. Plaintiffs hereby repeat the allegations of the prior paragraphs of the
Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

206. The Individual Plaintiffs and the Class have standing to pursue these
claims as assignees of their patients’ out-of-network benefits and as third party
beneficiaries of their patients’ out-of-network benefits.

207. The Associational Plaintiffs have standing to pursue these claims both
individually and/or on behalf of their members through associational standing.

208. From September 29, 2006, WellPoint conspired with UnitedHealth
Group, Ingenix and others known and unknown to conduct or participate, directly or
indirectly, in the conduct of the affairs of the Enterprise through a pattern of
racketeering activity as described above in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d). This
conspiracy to violate 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c) constitutes a violation of 18 U.S.C. §
1962(d).
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209. In furtherance of this conspiracy, WellPoint and others known and
unknown to Plaintiffs committed numerous overt acts as alleged above in the pattern
of racketeering described above.

210. As a direct and proximate result of, and by reason of, the activities of
WellPoint and its conduct in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d), Plaintiffs and the Class
have been injured within the meaning 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c).

211. Plaintiffs and the Class are, therefore, entitled to recover treble damages
together with the costs of this lawsuit, expenses and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

COUNT VI1

FOR VIOLATION OF SECTION ONE
OF THE SHERMAN ACT
(ON BEHALF OF ALL PLAINTIFFS AND THE CLASS)

212. Plaintiffs hereby repeat the allegations of the prior paragraphs of thei
Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

213. The Individual Plaintiffs and the Class have standing to pursue these
claims as assignees of their patients’ out-of-network benefits and as third party
beneficiaries of their patients’ out-of-network benefits.

214. The Associational Plaintiffs have standing to pursue these claims both
individually and/or on behalf of their members through associational standing.

215. WellPoint, along with Ingenix and its competitors, have combined,
conspired and/or agreed with one another, and/or with unnamed co-conspirators, to
unreasonably restrain trade in per se violation of Section One of the Sherman Act, 15
U.S.C. § 1. WellPoint combined, conspired and/or agreed with its co-conspirators in
a horizontal price fixing conspiracy that sought, and was able, to artificially lower, fix
or maintain the price paid to Plaintiffs and the Class by WellPoint as UCR rates.

216. The above agreement and/or conspiracy to fix prices is a per se violation
of Section 1 of the Sherman Act, which operates at the expense of doctors (as well as

subscribers) resulting in lower UCR rates of payment to doctors. The above
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agreement and conspiracy illegally restrains competition in a number of ways,
including:

(a) Fixing the price of UCR rates for Nonpar services at levels far
below the level that would exist in a truly competitive market;

(b)  Accomplishing this price fixing by agreeing to peg the UCR rates
to the same Ingenix database thereby using the same essential
pricing formula;

(¢)  Putting extreme additional competitive pressure on Nonpars to
become part of particular networks by collusively refusing to even
honor competitive market rates for those medical services in the
UCR determinations.

217. The above “price fixing™ scheme has reduced the amount Plaintiffs and
the Class are paid for their services below competitive levels. However, because of |
the overwhelming market power that the users of Ingenix collectively maintain in the
market, and because of the conspiracy and/or agreement among WellPoint, its
competitors and/or other parties to fix prices and not compete, there is no way to
avoid interaction with the conspiracy. Because of this conspiracy, WellPoint and its
co-conspirators, including UnitedHealth Group maintain their oligopoly by reducing
costs all the while squeezing payments for out-of-network services to unconscionably
low levels.

218. All of the aforementioned agreements and/or conspiracies affect
interstate commerce and have resulted in antitrust injury to the Plaintiffs and the
Class.

219. Plaintiffs and the Class are entitled to damages under 15 U.S.C. § 15, et
seq.

220. As a result of the illegal agreements and/or conspiracies, WellPoint has

caused the Plaintiffs and the Class to suffer financial loss in that WellPoint, with its
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agreements to fix prices and collective market strength, pays Plaintiffs and the Class
at UCR rates that are set at unconscionably low and uncompetitive levels.

221. As a consequence of WellPoint’s illegal agreements and/or conspiracies,
Plaintiffs have suffered and will continue to suffer financial loss and have been
injured and will continue to be injured in their business of providing and enhancing
medical services. Among other things, Plaintiffs and the Class received less payment
for their medical services than they would have in the absence of the agreement
among WellPoint the other users of Ingenix to fix the prices paid for Plaintiffs’ out-
of-network medical treatment.

222. Plaintiffs and the Class are entitled to recover such actual damages as the
jury may find, threefold, plus costs, expenses and attorneys fees. |

223. Plaintiffs and the Class further seek injunctive relief in the form of order
prohibiting WellPoint from engaging in the anti-competitive, discriminatory and |
otherwise wrongful behavior described above.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, the Class, and the ERISA Subclass demand
judgment in their favor against WellPoint as follows:

l. Certifying the Class and ERISA Subclass as set forth in this Complaint,
and appointing the Individual Plaintiffs as representatives for these classes;

2. Declaring that WellPoint has breached the terms of its members plans
with regard to out-of-network benefits in its members’ health plans, and thereby
awarding damages to Plaintiffs and the ERISA Subclass for unpaid benefits in ERISA
plans to Plaintiffs and the ERISA Subclass, as well as awarding declaratory relief
with respect to WellPoint’s violations of ERISA;

3. Declaring that WellPoint has failed to provide a “full and fair review” to
Plaintiffs and the ERISA Subclass under § 503 of ERISA, 29 U.S.C. § 1133, and
awarding declaratory relief with respect to WellPoint’s violation of ERISA;

4. Declaring that WellPoint has violated its disclosure obligations under

ERISA and the federal common law, including under § 104(b)(4) of ERISA, 29
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U.S.C. § 1024(b)( 4), and § 102 of ERISA, 29 U.S.C. § 1022, for which Plaintiffs and
the ERISA Subclass are entitled to declaratory relief;

5. Declaring that WellPoint violated federal claims procedures and SPD
disclosure requirements under ERISA and that “deemed exhaustion” under the
ERISA regulations is in etfect as a result of WellPoint’s actions;

6. Declaring that WellPoint is liable to Plaintiffs and the Class pursuant to
RICO, 18 U.S.C. §§, 1962(c), (d) and 1964(c) for threefold their damages, costs and
attorney fees and awarding such relief;

7. Enjoining WellPoint from committing the RICO violations described
above in the future and/or declaring their invalidity;

8. Declaring that WellPoint violated federal antitrust law and is liable to
Plaintiffs and the Class pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 15, et seq. for threefold their |
damages, costs and attorney fees and awarding such relief;,

9. Enjoining WellPoint from committing the antitrust violations described
above in the future and/or declaring their invalidity;

10. Enjoining WellPoint from using the Ingenix database as well as
Medicare fees to determine UCR, along with other Nonpar benefit reductions;

11.  Enjoining WellPoint from committing any violation of law proven at
trial;

12.  Awarding Plaintiffs and the Class the costs and disbursements of this
action, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses in amounts to be
determined by the Court;

13. Ordering WellPoint to recalculate and issue unpaid benefits to Plaintiffs
and Class members that were underpaid as a result of WellPoint’s improper UCR
determinations;

14.  Awarding prejudgment interest; and

15.  Granting such other and further relief as is just and proper.
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JURY TRIAL DEMAND

Plaintiffs demand a jury trial for all claims so triable.

Dated: gcdr T3, 1009 By: %J@L \
/

Edith M. Kallas (phv pending) D. Brian Hufford (phv pending)

Joe R. Whatley, Jr. (phv pending) Robert J. Axelrod (phv pending)

W. Tucker Brown (phv pending) POMERANTZ HAUDEK BLOCK
Laurence J. Hasson (phv pending) GROSSMAN & GROSSLLP
WHATLEY DRAKE & KALLAS, LLC 100 Park Avenue

1540 Broadway, 37th Floor New York, NY 10017

New York, NY 10036 (212) 661-1100

(212) 447-7070

Raymond P. Boucher (CA Bar # 115364)
Helen Zukin (CA Bar # 117933)

Michael Eyerly (CA Bar # 178693)
KIESEL BOUCHER LARSON LLP
8648 Wilshire Boulevard

Beverly Hills, CA 90211-2910

(310) 854-4444

Additional Counsel for Plaintiffs

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

James E. Cecchi

CARELLA, BYRNE, BAIN, GILFILLAN,
CECCHI, STEWART & OLSTEIN

5 Becker Farm Road

Roseland, New Jersey 07068

Timothy Blood (CA Bar # 149343
COUGHLIN STOIA GELLER RUDMAN
& ROBBINS LLP

655 W. Broadway, Suite 1900

San Diego, CA 92101

Ralph Knowles / Kenneth Canfield

DOFFERMYRE SHIELDS CANFIELD & KNOWLES, LLC
1355 Peachtree Street, Suite 1600

Atlanta, GA 30309

Nicholas B. Roth

EYSTER KEY TUBB WEAVER & ROTH
402 E. Moulton Street

Decatur, Alabama 35601
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Archie Lamb, Jr.

LAW OFFICES OF ARCHIE LAMB, LLC
2017 Second Avenue North, 2" Floor
Birmingham, Alabama 35203

Stuart Liner &?A Bar # 137495) / Angela Agrusa (CA Bar # 131337)
LINER, YANKELEVITZ, SUNSHINE

& REGENSTREIF LLP

1100 Glendon Avenue, 14th Floor

Los Angeles, CA 90024

Dennis G. Pantazis

WIGGINS, CHILDS, QUINN & PANTAZIS, LLC
The Kress éulldlng

301 Nineteenth Street North

Birmingham, Alabama 35203

J. Mark White

WHITE ARNOLD ANDREWS & DOWD
2025 3™ Avenue North, Suite 600
Birmingham, Alabama 35203

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
- 60 -






